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PEE RS ERA $ 704, 025 $ 3,213,874 $ 254, 598 $ 1,162,240 $ 74,110 $ 338,312
RN A 221,923 1,013,079 226, 593 1,034, 397 - -
ik - - 622 2, 840 584 2, 666
A2VGT A 3,161 14, 430 5, 666 25, 865 2,269 10, 358
ot AT A 6,577 30, 024 3, 744 17,091 2,868 13,092
A T A 5, 108 23, 318 243, 658 1,112,299 129, 952 593, 231
940, 794 4, 294, 725 734, 881 3, 354, 7132 209, 783 957, 659
B A
2% 128 584 748 3,415 2, 581 11,782
g T A 3,529, 677 16, 112, 976 663, 063 3, 026, 883 - -
FEFA 170,174 776, 844 127,213 580, 727 - -
Rfcte 3% 26 Rlaik 496, 678 2,267,335 195, 494 892, 430 86, 645 395, 535
YoRES i1 - - - - 1,331 6,076
MEENERE 2,301, 683 10,507, 183 1,033, 585 4,718, 315 372,008 1,698, 217
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iy 121, 760 555, 835 113,107 516, 333 73, 455 335, 322
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i Ax 1,539, 400 7,027, 361 480, 460 2,193, 300 49,000 223, 685
R i A fF i g 18,710 85,411 - - - -
P AL G 320, 720 1,464, 087 54 246 265 1,210
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B e $ 6,824,086 $ 31,151, 952 $ 2,255,585 $ 10, 296, 745 3 235, 862 $ 1,076,710
BEEEGE $ 17,656,327 $ 34,951,133 $ 2,822,436 $ 12,884, 420 $ 723,182 $ 3,301, 326
b FAER $ 3,688, 612 $ 16, 838,514 3 952, 589 $§ 4,348,569 3 383, 497 $ 1,750,664
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o $ 1,328,474 $ 6,064,484 $ 213, 531 $ 974, 769
RS ( 482,172) (_2,201,115) ( 124, 938) ( 570, 342)
FESA 846, 302 3, 863, 369 88,593 404, 427
Hip (L )y ( 1, 423) ( 6, 496) 33, 242 151, 750
FCR - ( 70, 526) ( 321, 951) ( 10, 227) ( 46, 686)
RN ( 134, 092) ( 612,130) ( 40,107) ( 183, 089)
¥ EE 640, 261 2,922,792 71,501 326, 402
P 73T ~ 20, 609 94, 080 23, 388 106, 766
pAaE S & ( 6,136) ( 28,011) ( 1, 647) ( 7,518)
&P AT~ 14, 473 66, 069 21, 741 99, 248
FLw =) 654, 734 2,988, 861 93, 242 425, 650
AR ( 349, 777) (1,596, 732) ( 43, 722) ( 199, 591)
BEYEE 2 304, 957 1,392,129 49, 520 226, 059
BEE g F ( 3,542) ( 16,169) 668 3, 049
$ 301, 415 $ 1,375,960 $ 50, 188 $ 229,108
3,193 14,576 7,510 34, 283
$ 304, 608 $ 1,390,536 3 57, 698 3 263, 391
* g iiﬁllép%f?ﬁ?—‘* PRI G
MY RN 310, 936 1,419, 423 43, 744 199, 691
B g IR ( 3,188) ( 14, 553) 601 2, 144
307, 748 1,404, 870 44, 345 202, 435
j\}ipg|aﬁr#§'_m§r%g~_a PRI O
[T R &1 6, 957 31, 759 10, 441 47, 663
rMPEFEFE S %‘E&?%*ﬂ PRI 314, 705 1, 436, 629 54, 786 250, 098
A LR 2 R
By ER ( 7,573) ( 34, 571) 5,776 26, 367
ST 1,240 9, 661 67 306
( 6, 333) ( 28,910) 5, 843 26,673
AWHBEEFE éﬁ@z*“*ﬁ#‘l%ﬁé ( 3,764) ( 17,183) ( 2,931) ( 13, 380)
AMPEFEEEE i%%ﬁér B 2 A F ( 10,097) ( 46, 093) 2,912 13, 293
AP FEEINE A 3 304, 608 $ 1,390,536 3 57, 698 3 263, 391
¥ E R DA
A AR EP) 3 3.562 $ 0.163 $ 0.513 $ 0.023
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10617 1p 4%E $ 250,936 § 85,582 § 796 0§ 36,746 ($ 17,395 $ 7,378 $ 191,242 $ 555,285 $ 11,566 $ 566,851
P - - - - - - 307, 748 307,748  ( 6, 333) 301, 415
B eqp s - - - - 6, 957 - - 6,957 ( 3,764) 3,193
B+ o) s #6 - - - ( 36, 746) - - - ( 36, 746) -« 36, 746)
Fah T E IR - - - - - - - - ( 2,4172) ( 2,472)
E R PR - - - - - 38,442 ( 38, 442) - - -
106# 127 31 p 4% $ 250,936 $§ 85,582 § 796§ - (§_ 10,438) $ 45,820 $§ 460,548 § 833,244 (§ 1,003) § 832,241
(& % &)
105# 1" 1p 4%F $ 250,936 § 85,582 § 796 0§ 14,913 ($ 27,836) $ - § 154,275 $ 478,666 $ 8,654 § 487,320
P E A - - - - - - 44, 345 44, 345 5, 843 50, 188
BusweHE - - - - 10, 441 - - 10,441 ( 2,930 7,510
o a9y R ¥k - - - 21, 833 - - - 21, 833 - 21, 833
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105# 127 31 p 4% $ 250,936 $§ 85,582 § 796 0§ 36,746 (§ 17,395 $ 7,378 § 191,242 § 555,285 § 11,566 § 566,851
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Besweps - - - - 31, 759 - - 31,759 ( 17,183) 14,576
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Fas B E IR - - - - - - - - ( 11,285) ( 11, 285)
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106% 127 31 p 4% $1,145,523 $§ 390,682 § 3,634 % - (47,649 § 209,168  $2,102,402  $3,803, 760 ($ 4,579)  $3,799, 181
(& % 1 )
105& 17 1p 4R%F $1,145,523  § 390,682 § 3,634 & 68,077 (§ 127,071 § - § 704,265 $2,185,110 $ 39,506  $2,224,616
4P ) - - - - - - 202, 435 202, 435 26, 673 229,108
A wedqf s - - - - 47, 663 - - 47,663  ( 13, 380) 34, 283
HF 20975 g ¥ - - - 99, 668 - - - 99, 668 - 99, 668
#oE T RH - - - - - 33,680 ( 33, 680) - - -
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S 3L Ao 375
FEFEH2ZRmENE
—g EiEdz Mg ($ 1,700,122) ($ 17,761, 057) ($  185,330) ($  846,031)
FRCERURR ( 194, 573) ( 888, 226) ( 21, 932) ( 100, 120)
SE A L ( 24, 146) ( 110, 226) ( 22, 769) ( 103, 941)
PR ERT Y L ( 37, 405) ( 170, 754) ( 20, 547) ( 93, 797)
Y AR R A -y L (1,956, 246) (8,930, 263) ( 250, 578) (1,143,889)
FEER 2 R A () - EP 34, 780 158, 771 ( 17, 284) ( 78, 901)
HFEB2ZRERE
HEAEA RS EKA ( 339, 526) ( 1,549,936) 83, 476) ( 381, 068)
HE AT A ( 283) ( 1,292)  ( 5, 089) ( 23, 231)
eBe 2 A1 4 20, 609 94, 080 23, 388 106, 766
wgi B - - ( 230, 050) (1,050,178)
BT AR - - ( 243, 658) ( 1,112,299)
EA G oA ( 3,120) ( 14, 243) - -
Ja~ H A S % 2R A WK - - 376 1,716
£ VU457 T AH 4 ( 150, 457) ( 686,836)  ( 16, 575) ( 75, 665)
R T 7, 463 34, 069 - -
RFREB2ZER -y E30F (__ 465,314) (2,124,158)  ( 555, 084) (_ 2,533,959)
BFREFZERE R - B LM ( 1,951) ( 8,901 ¢ 50) ( 298)
R ERE
TR 4,576, 200 20, 890, 353 1,184,172 5, 405, 745
RS ( 555, 460) ( 2,535,675) ( 49, 972) ( 298,122)
B A ( 4,900) ( 22, 368) - -
EW R EIE BB %A GR O )H 4 ( 362, 293) (1,653, 868) 320, 338 1,462, 343
BT EB 2 R Y E 3, 653, 547 16, 678, 442 1, 454, 538 6, 639, 966
TR RS S TR - - 10, 998 50, 206
Bk 2 GF R A LA 1,264, 816 5, 773, 885 642, 540 2,933,195
Wi AR Gt R AT 1,033, 585 4,718, 315 372, 008 1,698, 217
R 3, 282 14, 983 19, 037 86, 903
WRREE QLR LT $ 2,301,683 $ 10,507, 183 $ 1,033,585 $ 4,718,315
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BB EAR Y FARE kY EARET BEB- LR kY EARET
£ RM%BEL & BEEFHGEH)  RABYNL &4F s*&a RAl%H2 37 E3RMBUL EF BEEFHGEH) _ RAGBYNL &4F
000000 %
wEF A
MEEOFME $ 10,507,183 $ -8 10,507,183  § 4,718,315 § -8 4,718,315 § 1,698,217 $ - % 1,698, 217
Mfcte i 2 2 i fcic 2,267,335 ( 2,267,335) - 892,430 ( 892, 430) - 395,535 ( 395, 535) -
Tl e B i 3 - 976, 202 976, 202 - 491, 317 491, 3117 - 314, 067 314, 067
LD RIS - 135, 832 135, 832 - 41, 436 41, 436 - 17, 685 17, 685
How e Ai-M ik 4 - 4,857 4,857 - 2170, 609 270, 609 - 15, 052 15, 052
2% 16, 890, 404 - 16, 890, 404 3,611, 025 - 3,611, 025 11,782 - 11, 782
AR - 172, 680 172, 680 - 48, 864 48, 864 - 21,871 21, 877
Hu b FA-H e 991, 486 - 991, 486 307, 918 - 307,918 232, 057 - 232, 057
s A A 30, 656,408 ( 977, 764) 29, 678, 644 9,529,688 ( 40, 204) 9, 489, 484 2,343,667 ( 26, 854) 2,316,813
b F A
FEAE R E R KA 3,213,874 - 3,213,874 1,162, 240 - 1,162, 240 338, 312 - 338,312
L P AL 1,013,079 - 1,013,079 1,034, 397 - 1,034, 397 - - -
AT A 14, 430 - 14, 430 28,705 - 28,705 13,024 - 13,024
s #T AR 30, 024 - 30, 024 17,091 - 17,091 13,092 - 13,092
WA - 977, 764 977, 764 - 40, 204 40, 204 - 26, 854 26, 854
duFA 23,318 - 23,318 1,112,299 - 1,112,299 593, 231 - 593, 231
it F AL 4,294, 725 977, 764 5,272, 489 3,354, 732 40, 204 3, 394, 936 957, 659 26, 854 984,513
$ 34,951,133 § - 8 34,951,133  § 12,884,420 § $ 12,884,420 § 3,301,326 $§ - 8 3, 301, 326
$ 7,027,361 § - 8 7,027, 361 $ 2,193,300 § - 8 2,193,300 § 223,685 $ - 8 223, 685
R rteir 2 B s it a0 2,924,106 ( 2,924, 106) - 2,413,109 ( 2,413,109) - 225,840 ( 225, 840) -
s 1 R AR - 710,131 710,131 - 1,603, 826 1,603, 826 - 94, 584 94, 584
g e 8 7}»1, i 1,464, 087 - 1,464, 087 246 - 246 1,210 - 1,210
LN TR - 1,592,176 1,592,176 - 738,918 738,918 - 115, 718 115,718
Hois 1A BE R4 - 621, 799 621, 799 - 5,300 5,300 - 5,009 5,009
AR 2,316, 929 - 2,316, 929 574, 464 - 574, 464 142, 268 7,482 149, 750
”'kwﬁ B ik 4 - - - - - - - -
85,411 - 85,411 - 65, 065 65, 065 - 3, 047 3,047
13,817, 894 - 13,817, 894 5,181,119 - 5,181,119 593, 003 - 593, 003
16, 981, 800 - 16, 981, 800 3,461, 183 - 3,461, 183 287,759 - 287,759
- - - 575 - 575 4,423 - 4,423
AR R T 4 - - - 1, 653, 868 - 1, 653, 868 191, 525 - 191, 525
352, 258 - 352, 258 - - - - - -
17, 334, 058 - 17, 334, 058 5,115, 626 - 5,115, 626 483, 707 - 483, 707
31, 151, 952 - 31, 151, 952 10, 296, 745 - 10, 296, 745 1,076, 710 - 1,076, 710
1, 145, 523 - 1, 145, 523 1, 145, 523 - 1, 145, 523 1, 145, 523 - 1, 145, 523
A 555, 835 - 555, 835 516, 333 - 516, 333 335, 322 - 335, 322
g 2k 2,102, 402 - 2,102, 402 873, 020 - 813, 020 704, 265 - 704, 265
Bt o P I EE EY 3, 803, 760 - 3, 803, 760 2,534, 876 - 2,534, 876 2,185,110 - 2,185,110
e E ( 4,579) - 4,579) 52, 799 - 52, 799 39, 506 - 39, 506
B EE R 3,799,181 - 3,799,181 2,587,675 - 2,587, 675 2,224, 616 - 2,224, 616
(R3S ¥ o $ 34,951,133 § - 8 34,951,133  § 12,884,420 § - 8 12,884,420 § 3,301,326 $§ - 8 3, 301, 326
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FZEE- BN Y EAR G - - - S e EARE
PREBEZ G HNELEMGH) R%E2Z &3 €V RBHE2Z & PNEEEHGH REI%H2 $3F

$ 6,064,484 $ 11,444  § 6,075,928 $ 974,769 $ 162,121 $ 1,136, 890
( 2,201,115) - ( 2,201,115) ( 570, 342) - ( 570, 342)
3, 863, 369 11, 444 3,874,813 404, 427 162, 121 566, 548
( 321, 951) - ( 321,951 ( 46, 686) - ( 46, 686)
( 612,130) ( 21, 333) ( 633,463) ( 183, 089) ( 3,095) ( 186, 184)
2,929,288 ( 9, 889) 2,919, 399 174, 652 159, 026 333,678
( 6, 496) 46, 979 40, 483 151,750 ( 151, 750) -
- ( 58, 423) (58, 423) - ( 10,371) ( 10, 371)
94, 080 - 94, 080 106, 766 - 106, 766
( 28,011) - ( 28,011) ( 7,518) - ( 7,518)
- 21, 333 21, 333 - 3,095 3,095
59, 573 9,889 69, 462 250, 998 ( 159, 026) 91, 972
2, 988, 861 - 2, 988, 861 425, 650 - 425, 650
( 1,596, 732) - ( 1,596, 732) ( 199, 591) - ( 199, 591)
1,392,129 - 1,392,129 226, 059 - 226, 059
( 16, 169) - ( 16, 169) 3,049 - 3,049
$ 1,375,960 § - 3 1,375,960  § 229,108 § - 3 229,108
14,576 - 14,576 34, 283 - 34, 283
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Independent Auditor’s Report

_a
pwc Rk E

TO THE MEMBERS OF EVERGRANDE HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 56 to 125, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is:

° Health Management Segment — Recoverability assessment on properties under development (including land use

rights) and completed properties held for sale

Key Audit Matter

Health Management Segment — Recoverability
assessment on properties under development
(including land use rights) and completed properties
held for sale

Refer to Notes 4(a) and 10(a), (b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group holds properties that are health and living
project for sale to third parties under the Health
Management Segment. The Group also holds land use
rights with the intention to develop project for sale.

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We have performed the following procedures to
address this key audit matter:

U)

(i)

We understood, evaluated and tested the internal
control over the Group’s process in determining
the costs to completion and net sales value in
the recoverability assessment of the Group’s
properties.

We assessed the Group’s estimates of the
anticipated costs to completion for properties
under development by reconciling the anticipated
costs to completion to the approved budgets
and checking material differences to supporting
documentation. We compared the major cost
compositions contained in these budgets with
the actual cost compositions of similar types of
completed properties in similar locations. We
also checked the adjustments to the supporting
document.



Key Audit Matter

Properties under development (including land use rights)
and completed properties held for sale amounted to
approximately RMB3,529,677,000 and RMB170,174,000,
respectively, as at 31 December 2017, accounting for
approximately 48% of the Group’s total assets in
aggregate. Management assessed the recoverability of the
carrying amounts of properties under development (including
land use rights) and completed properties held for sale
according to their expected recoverable amounts, taking
into account the anticipated costs to completion based on
the Group’s past experience and the expected net sales
value based on prevailing market conditions. No provision
was made based on management’s assessment.

We focused on this recoverability assessment because of
the use of significant estimates and judgements by
management in determining the costs to completion and
net sales value described above.

Independent Auditor’s Report

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(i)  We challenged management’s assumptions
when determining the expected net sales value
based on prevailing market conditions by:

° On a sample basis, comparing the estimated
selling prices of the Group’s properties to most
recent transactions of the Group’s properties
under sales or presales, or the prevailing market
price of similar type of properties in similar
location based on our research of publicly
available resources;

o Analysing the Group’s historical selling expenses
to selling price ratio and assessing whether
management’s estimated selling expenses were
within such range.

Based on the above, we found that management’s
estimates and judgements used in the recoverability
assessment on properties under development (including
land use rights) and completed properties held for sale
are supportable by the available evidence.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Annual Report 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited



Independent Auditor’s Report

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Yeung Chor Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2017

As at
As at 31 December 1 January
2017 2016 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated) (Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i)) (Note 2(a)(i)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6(a) 704,025 254,598 74,110
Land use rights 6(b) 221,923 226,593 —
Goodwill 7 - 622 584
Long-term prepayments 8 5,108 243,658 129,952
Intangible assets 9 3,161 5,666 2,269
Deferred income tax assets 18 6,577 3,744 2,868
940,794 734,881 209,783
Current assets
Inventories 128 748 2,581
Prepayments, trade and other receivables 8 496,678 195,494 86,645
Properties under development 10(a) 3,529,677 663,063 —
Completed properties held for sale 10(b) 170,174 127,213 —
Cash and bank balances 12(a) 2,301,683 1,033,585 372,008
Restricted deposits 12(b) 217,193 67,452 50,834
Income tax recoverable - — 1,331
6,715,533 2,087,555 513,399
Total assets 7,656,327 2,822,436 723,182
EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital 13 250,936 250,936 250,936
Retained earnings 460,548 191,242 154,275
Reserves 15 121,760 113,107 73,455
833,244 555,285 478,666
Non-controlling interests (1,003) 11,566 8,654
Total equity 832,241 566,851 487,320
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LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Finance leases
Deferred income tax liabilities
Loans from fellow subsidiaries

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Receipt in advance from customers
Borrowings
Finance leases
Current income tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 125 were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2018

and were signed on its behalf.

Tan Chaohui
Director

Note

17(a)
17(b)
18
31

16
16
17(a)
17(b)

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2017

As at 31 December

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i))

3,720,000 758,200
77,165 —

— 126

- 362,293
3,797,165 1,120,619
640,549 528,611
507,542 125,841
1,539,400 480,460
18,710 —
320,720 54
3,026,921 1,134,966
6,824,086 2,255,585
7,656,327 2,822,436
3,688,612 952,589
4,629,406 1,687,470

Han Xiaoran
Director

The notes on pages 63 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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As at

1 January
2016
RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))

63,036

969
41,955

105,960

49,472
31,165
49,000

265

129,902

235,862

723,182

383,497

593,280
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Note

Continuing operations
Revenue S
Cost of sales 19
Gross profit

Other (costs)/income, net 22

Selling and marketing costs 19

Administrative expenses 19
Operating profit

Finance income 23

Finance costs 23
Finance income, net
Profit before income tax

Income tax expense 24
Profit from continuing operations
Discontinued operation

(Loss)/profit from discontinued operation 11

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Items that may not be reclassified to profit and loss:
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company arising
from:
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operation

Other comprehensive income attributable to owners of
the Company:
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of
the Company

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited

2017
RMB’000

1,328,474
(482,172)

846,302
(1,423)
(70,526)
(134,092)

640,261

20,609
(6,136)

14,473

654,734
(349,777)

304,957

(3,542)

301,415

3,193

304,608

310,936
(3,188)

307,748

6,957

314,705

2016
RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i)

213,631
(124,938)

88,593
33,242
(10,227)
(40,107)

71,501

23,388
(1,647)

21,741

93,242
(43,722)

49,520

668

50,188

7,510

57,698

43,744
601

44,345

10,441

54,786



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017
Note RMB’000
(Loss)/profit attributable to non-controlling interests
— Continuing operations (7,573)
— Discontinued operation 1,240
(6,333)
Other comprehensive loss attribute to non-controlling interests
Currency translation differences (3,764)
Total comprehensive (loss)/profit attributable to
non-controlling interests (10,097)
Total comprehensive income for the year 304,608
Earnings/(losses) per share for profit/(loss) attributable to
owners of the Company 27 3.562 cents

The notes on pages 63 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2016
RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i)

5,776
67

5,843

(2,931)

2,912

57,698

0.513 cents
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Attributable to owners of the Company

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Capital Non-
Share Special contribution Other Exchange  Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamings Total interests equity
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(Note 2(@)()) (Note 2(a)()) (Note 2(a)()) (Note 2()(i)) (Note 2(a)()) (Note 2(a)()) (Note 2()(i)) (Note 2(a)(i)) (Note 2(a)(i)) (Note 2(a)()
At 1 January 2016 250,936 85,582 796 14,913 (27,836) — 154,275 478,666 8,664 487,320
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year — — - - — — 44345 44345 5,843 50,188
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation difference = = = = 10,441 = = 10,441 (2,931) 7,510
Total other comprehensive
income for the year — — — — 10,441 — — 10,441 (2,931) 7,510
Total comprehensive income — — — — 10,441 — 44,345 54,786 2,912 57,698
Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners
Deemed contribution from fellow
subsidiaries - - - 21,833 - - - 21,833 - 21,833
Transfer to statutory reserve — - - - - 7,378 (7,378) — — —
Total transactions with
owners in their capacity
as owners - - - 21,833 - 7,378 (7,378) 21,833 - 21,833
Balance at 31 December 2016 250,936 85,582 796 36,746 (17,395) 7,378 191,242 555,285 11,566 566,851
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Attributable to owners of the Company

Capital Non-
Share Special contribution Other Exchange Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests equity

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

At 1 January 2017 (Restated) 250,936 85,582 796 36,746 (17,395) 7,378 191,242 555,285 11,566 566,851

Comprehensive income

Profit/(loss) for the year - - - - - - 307,748 307,748 (6,333) 301,415
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation difference - - - - 6,957 - - 6,957 (3,764) 3,193

Total other comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 6,957 - - 6,957 (3,764) 3,193

Total comprehensive
income/(loss) - - - - 6,957 - 307,748 314,705 (10,097) 304,608

Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners
Release of deemed contribution

from fellow subsidiaries - - - (36,746) - - - (36,746) - (36,746)
Disposal of discontinued

operation - - - - - - - = (2/472) (2/472)
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - - 38,442 (38,442) - - -

Total transactions with
owners in their capacity
as owners - - - (36,746) - 38,442 (38,442)  (36,746) (2,472)  (39,218)

Balance at 31 December 2017 250,936 85,582 796 - (10,438) 45,820 460,548 833,244 (1,003) 832,241

The notes on pages 63 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operations
Interest paid
Income tax paid
PRC land appreciation tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities from continuing operations
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities from
discontinued operation

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of intangible assets
Purchases of land use rights
Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Deposit for acquisition of land use rights
Deposit for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries
Restricted deposits
Sales proceeds from short-term investments

Net cash used in investing activities from continuing operations
Net cash used in investing activities from discontinued operation

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Proceeds from loans from fellow subsidiaries
Repayments of loans from fellow subsidiaries
Repayment of capital element of finance leases

Net cash generated from financing activities from continuing
operations

Net cash generated from financing activities from discontinued
operation

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of exchange difference on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year,
representing bank balances and cash

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited

2017
Note RMB’000

28(a) (1,700,122)
(194,573)
(24,146)
(37,405)

(1,956,246)

34,780

(339,526)
(283)

20,609

28(0) -
8 —_
(3,120
(150,457)

7,463

[00]

(465,314)
(1,951)

17(a) 4,576,200
17(a) (555,460)
(362,293)

(4,900)

3,653,547

1,264,816
1,033,585
3,282

12(a) 2,301,683

The notes on pages 63 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2016
RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))

(185,330)
(21,932)
(22,769)
(20,547)

(250,578)

(17,284)

(83,476)
(5,089)
(230,050)
23,388
376
(200,157)
(43,501)

(16,575)

(655,084)
(50)

1,184,172
(49,972)
320,338

1,454,538

10,998

642,540
372,008
19,037

1,033,585



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is engaged
in “Internet+” community health management, international hospitals, elderly care and rehabilitation, medical
cosmetology and anti-ageing (collectively, the “Health Management Segment”) in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The Group also engaged in magazine publishing, distribution of magazines, digital business and provision
of magazine content (collectively, the “Media Segment”) in Hong Kong which was disposed in November 2017 and
the details of the disposal are disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is incorporated in Hong Kong as a limited liability company under the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The address of its registered office is 23rd Floor, China Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester Road, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and it has deposit receipt listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousands, unless otherwise stated.

Key events

On 7 September 2017, the Group won a bidding on the state-owned construction land use rights of 11 land plots
in Xingyang, Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, the PRC, at a total consideration of RMB1,829,900,000. The land
plots will be used for the construction of the health experience center, the five-star healthcare hotel and the
headquarters for domestic and overseas large-to-medium scale medical enterprises.

On 22 December 2017, the Group entered into the land use rights bid confirmations for the state-owned
construction land use rights of 5 land plots in Yangzhong, Zhengjiang City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, at a
consideration of RMB839,760,000. The land plots will be used for the construction of an international specialist
hospital, an international health examination center and an intelligent elderly care home.

On 9 November 2017, Right Bliss Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, completed the disposal of
9,001 ordinary share, representing 90.01% of the issued share capital, of New Media Group Limited and the entire
shareholder’s loan amounted to approximately HK$56,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB47,283,000) due
and payable by New Media Group Limited to Right Bliss Limited, at a consideration of HK$63,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB53,602,000) (the “Disposal”). New Media Group Limited and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Disposal Group”) were mainly engaged in the magazine publishing, distribution of magazines, digital business and
provision of magazine content business (the “Media Segment Business”). The Media Segment Business
represented a separate major business segment and the Disposal Group was presented as a discontinued
operation. Upon completion of the Disposal, the Group ceased to have any equity interest in the New Media Group
Limited. The details of the disposal are disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years/periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“‘HKFRS”) and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(i)

(ii)

Change in presentation currency

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has changed its presentation currency from
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) to RMB for the preparation of its consolidated financial statements following
the disposal of Media Segment (the “Disposal”). After the Disposal, the remaining principal activities of
the Group are mainly conducted in the PRC where the functional currency of those subsidiaries in the
PRC are denominated in RMB and all of the Group’s revenue will be denominated in RMB. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company considered that the change would result in a more appropriate
presentation of the Group’s performance and financial position in these consolidated financial
statements and provide more relevant financial information to the readers.

The change in presentation currency has been applied retrospectively. The comparative figures in these
consolidated financial statements were then translated to RMB using the applicable closing rates for
assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet and applicable average rates for items in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of cash flows. Share
capital, share premium and reserves were translated at the exchange rate at the date when the
respective amounts were determined (i.e. historical exchange rates).

Going concern

The Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through its internal resources, bank
facilities, borrowings and loans from fellow subsidiaries. The directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for foreseeable future. The
Group therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

New amendments to existing standards adopted by the Group

The following new amendments to existing standards are mandatory for the first time for the financial
period beginning 1 January 2017. The adoption of these amended standards does not have any
significant impact to the results or financial position of the Group.

Amendment to HKAS 7
Amendment to HKAS 12
Amendments to HKFRS 12

Statement of Cash Flows
Income taxes
Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities

New standards, amendments to existing standards and new interpretations have
been issued but are not effective for the financial period beginning 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(FRIC) Int-22

HK(FRIC) Int-23

Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at
Fair Value

Transfers of Investment property

Deletion of Short-Term Exemptions for First-
Time Adopters

Classification and Measurement of Share-
Based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Prepayment features with negative
compensation

Clarification to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

Financial Instruments

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Leases

Insurance Contracts

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Uncertainty over income tax treatments issued

1 January 2018

1 January 2018
1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2019

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

To be determined

1 January 2018
1 January 2019
1 January 2021
1 January 2018

1 January 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv) New standards, amendments to existing standards and new interpretations have

been issued but are not effective for the financial period beginning 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group: (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these new standards,
amendments to existing standards and new interpretations, certain of which are relevant to the Group’s
operations.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or loss and the
Group does not have any such liabilities. The derecognition rules have been transferred from HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and have not been changed.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment provisions based on expected credit
losses (ECL) rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS 39. It applies to financial
assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at FVOCI, contract assets under
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, lease receivables, loan commitments and certain
financial guarantee contracts. While the Group has not yet undertaken a detailed assessment of how its
impairment provisions would be affected by the new model, it may result in an earlier recognition of
credit losses.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and changes in presentation.
These are expected to change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about its financial
instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of the new standard.

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The Group will
apply the new rules retrospectively from 1 January 2018, with the practical expedients permitted under
the standard. Comparatives for 2017 will not be restated except in relation to changes in the fair value
of foreign exchange forward contracts attributable to forward points, which will be recognised in the
costs of hedging reserve.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which
covers contracts for goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts and the
related literature. The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when control
of a good or service transfers to a customer. The standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv) New standards, amendments to existing standards and new interpretations have
been issued but are not effective for the financial period beginning 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group: (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

Impact

Management has assessed the effects of applying the new standard on the Group’s financial
statements and has identified the following areas that will be affected :

o Revenue from pre-sales of properties under development in the PRC is recognised when or as
the control of the asset is transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the contract
and laws that apply to the contract, control of the properties under development may transfer
over time or at a point in time. Control of the properties under development is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance do not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

When control of the property transfers over time, revenue is recognised over the period of the
contract by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control
of the completed property.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based on
the property development costs incurred as a percentage of total estimated costs for complete
satisfaction as allocated to the contract.

Revenue for certain pre-sale properties contracts will be changed and recognized earlier over the
period of time, instead of at a single point in time under the current accounting policy.

° The timing of revenue recognition for sale of completed properties, which is currently based on
whether significant risk and reward of ownership of properties transfer, will be recognised at a
later point in time when the underlying property is legally or physically transfer to the customer
under the control transfer model.

o The Group currently offers different payment schemes to customers, the transaction price and
the amount of revenue for the sale of property will be adjusted when significant financial
component exists in that contract.

° The Group provides different incentives to customers when they sign a property sale contract.
Certain incentives (e.g. free gift and property management service) represents separate
performance obligation in a contract. Part of the consideration of the contract will be allocated to
those performance obligations and recognised as revenue only when performance obligation is
satisfied. The amount of revenue for the sale of property will also be reduced for any cash
payment to customer which doesn’t not represent fair value of good or service provided by the
customer.

o Certain costs incurred for obtaining a pre-sale property contract (e.g. sale commission), which is
currently expense off in profit and loss directly, will be eligible for capitalisation under HKFRS 15
and match with revenue recognition pattern of related contract in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv) New standards, amendments to existing standards and new interpretations have

been issued but are not effective for the financial period beginning 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group: (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

Date of adoption by Group

The Group intends to adopt the standard on all uncompleted contracts as at 1 January 2018 using the
modified retrospective approach which means that the cumulative impact of the adoption will be
recognised in retained earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.

The Group estimates the overall impact of the above is an increase of the Group’s retained earnings on
1 January 2018, and a corresponding increase in current asset and deferred tax liability and a decrease
in the current liability as of 1 January 2018.

At this stage, the Group is not able to estimate the impact of the new rules to the Group’s financial
statements. The Group will make more detailed assessments of the impact over the next few months.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group is a lessee of certain offices and buildings, which are currently accounted for as operating
leases under HKAS 17 based on the accounting policy as set out in Note 2(z). Under HKFRS 16,
lessees are required to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a right-of-use
asset for all lease contracts in the statement of financial position. Lessees will also have to present
interest expense on the lease liability and depreciation on the right-of-use asset in the income
statement. In comparison with operating leases under HKAS 17, this will change not only the allocation
of expenses but also the total amount of expenses recognised for each period of the lease term. The
combination of a straight-line depreciation of the right-of-use asset and the effective interest rate
method applied to the lease liability will result in a higher total charge to profit or loss in the initial years
of the lease, and decreasing expenses during the latter part of the lease term. The new standard has
included an optional exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. This
exemption can only be applied by lessees. The Group is expected to apply the new standard starting
from the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

There are no other new standards and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective that
would be expected to have material impact on the Group.

(b) Consolidation

(i)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) Consolidation (Continued)

(ii)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations except for business
combinations under common control. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is
the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in profit and loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit and loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the profit and loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Consolidation (Continued)

(iii) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(iv) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair
value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss.
The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit and loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwiill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM”). The CODM who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

() Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each group entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entities operate (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Group’s presentation
currency. The Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(f)

(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except when deferred in equity as qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

(iii) Foreign exchange gain and losses that relate to borrowings denominated in foreign currencies are
presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within “finance (costs)/income, net”.
All other foreign exchange gain and losses are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “administrative expenses”.

The results and financial positions of the group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance sheet of the group entities are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each income statement of the group entities are translated at average
exchange rates; and

o all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and any impairment loss.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements 4 years
Machinery and equipment 3to 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3to 10 years
Land use rights 50 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within other gains/(losses) in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Assets under construction are stated at historical cost less impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the development of the assets which comprises construction costs,
amortisation of land use rights, borrowing costs and professional fees incurred during the development
period. On completion, the assets are transferred to buildings within property, plant and equipment.

No depreciation is provided for assets under construction. The carrying amount of an asset under
construction is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of
the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Intangible assets

Separately acquired intangible assets are shown at historical cost. Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Intangible assets have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.
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(k)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of which
can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major line of
business or geographic area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view
to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is presented in the consolidated income
statement, which comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation and the post-tax gain or
loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs of disposal, or on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.

Financial assets

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are classified as non-current assets. The

Group’s loans and receivables comprise as “trade and other receivables”, “cash and bank balances”
and “restricted cash” in the consolidated balance sheet.

(i) Recognition and measurement
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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(k) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

() Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:
° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
° a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

° the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the
borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

° it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
° the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
° observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from

a portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot
yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the portfolio, including:

(i) adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio;
(i)  national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists.
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Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. If a loan has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Properties under development

Properties represent the health and living project. Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately expected to be
realised, less applicable variable selling expenses and anticipated cost to completion.

Development cost of property comprises mainly construction costs, cost of land use rights, borrowing costs,
and professional fees incurred during the development period. On completion, the properties are transferred
to completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless those will not be realised in one normal
operating cycle.

Completed properties held for sale

Properties represent the health and living project. Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of each
relevant year are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less applicable estimated selling expenses to make the sales.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.
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()

(q)

(s)

(t)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as noncurrent assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent includes cash in hand and bank
deposits.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental cost directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using effective interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is only recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

() Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

(iii) Offsetting
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the respective balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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(w) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Retirement benefits

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group
participate in various defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal
and provincial governments in the PRC under which the Group and the PRC based employees are
required to make monthly contributions to these plans calculated at a percentage of the employees’
salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired PRC based employees’ payables under the plans described above. Other
than the monthly contributions, the Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement and
other post retirement benefits of its employees. The assets of these plans are held separately from
those of the Group in independently administrated funds managed by the PRC government.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under the rules and regulations of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong, which is a
defined contribution retirement scheme. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on minimum
statutory contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income. The assets
of this pension scheme are held separately from those of the Group in independently administered
funds.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonus. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal;
or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after balance sheet date are discounted to present value.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Revenue and income

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts
receivable for sale of goods and render of services, stated net of discounts and returns, if any. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customers, the type of transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sales of health and living project

Revenue from sales of health and living project is recognised when the risks and rewards of properties
are transferred to the purchasers, which is when the construction of relevant properties has been
completed and the properties have been delivered to the purchasers and collectability of related
receivables is reasonably assured. To the extent that the Group has to perform further work on the
properties already delivered to the purchasers, the relevant expenses shall be recognised
simultaneously. Deposits and installments received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the balance sheets under current liabilities.

(i) Income from medical cosmetology and health management

Income from medical cosmetology and health management are recognised when the services have
been rendered to customers. The period of these services rendered is usually within a day.
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(22 Revenue and income (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Income recognised upon expiry of prepaid card

Prepaid cards are issued and sold to customers, and the receipts in respect of which are deferred and
recognised as “receipts in advance” on the consolidated balance sheet. The Group implements a
contractual expiry policy for these cards under which any unutilised prepayments are fully recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income upon their expiry.

Advertising income
Advertising income is recognised upon the publication of the edition in which the advertisement is
placed.

Circulation income
Circulation income represents sales of magazines and books, which is recognised when the
publications are delivered and title has passed, net of any allowances for returned unsold copies.

Digital business income
Digital business income represents revenue from provision of digital services platform, which is
recognised when services are provided.

Provision of magazine content
Revenue from the provision of magazine content is recognised on a straight-line basis over the relevant
contract period.

(viii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a
receivable impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cashflow discounted at original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continued
unwinding the discount as interest income.

(aa) Leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases.

(i)

(i)

The Group is the lessee other than operating lease of land use rights
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor), are charged to
the profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group is the lessee under operating lease of land use rights
Land use rights under operating lease, which mainly comprised land use rights to be developed for self-
use buildings, are stated at cost and subsequently amortised in the profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the operating lease periods, less accumulated impairment provision.
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(ab) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the equity holders of the Company is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the equity holders or
the board of directors, where applicable.

(ac) Financial guarantee

()

Financial guarantee are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation, where appropriate.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows
between the contractual payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required
without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates are provided for no compensation, the
fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other receivables, cash and bank balances,
restricted deposits, trade and other payables, borrowings and loans from fellow subsidiaries. The Group
manages and monitors these exposure to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in the PRC and Hong Kong and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
cash and bank balances, bank borrowings, loans from fellow subsidiaries and other recognised assets
and liabilities that are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
entities. The revenue, expenses and borrowings of the foreign operations are denominated in functional
currencies of those operations. The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy and has not
entered into forward exchange contract to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk. However, the
directors monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2017, if USD had weakened/strengthened by 5% against RMB, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 would decrease/increase
by approximately RMB6,682,000. As at 31 December 2016, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against HKS$, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2016: decrease/increase by approximately RMB41,121,000.
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(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, borrowings. Cash and cash
equivalents and borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2017, if interest rate on cash and cash equivalents, borrowings had been 100 basis
point higher/lower with all variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2017
would increase/decrease by approximately RMB16,437,000 (2016: decrease/increase by approximately
RMB4,306,000).

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade and other receivables and deposits with banks.
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the end of the reporting period.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group monitors the level of exposure to
ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the management of the
Group reviews the recoverability of each trade debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

For credit exposures to customers, credit terms are granted to customers upon obtaining approval
from the Company’s senior management after assessing the credit history of those customers. The
Group closely monitors the collection of progress payments from customers in accordance with
payment schedule agreed with customers. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to purchasers with an appropriate financial strength and appropriate percentage of down
payments.

Meanwhile, the Group has the right to cancel the contracts once repayment from the customers is in
default; it also has monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue
balances. In addition, the Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade and
other receivables to ensure that adequate impairment provisions are made for irrecoverable amounts.
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

The Group typically provides guarantees to banks in connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of properties for an amount up to 70% of the total purchase
price of the property. Detailed disclosure of these guarantees is made in note 32. If a purchaser defaults
on the payment of its mortgage loan during the guarantee period, the bank holding the guarantee may
demand the Group to repay the outstanding principal of the loan and any interest accrued thereon.
Under such circumstances, the Group is able to retain the customer’s deposit and resell the property to
recover any amounts paid by the Group to the bank. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December 2016
of approximately RMB20,665,874 were derived from a few advertising agencies and a sole distributor
of the Group, representing the top five customers of the Group. They are assessed by the management
as high credit rating customers. In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the Group
continuously monitor the level of exposure to ensure that follow-up actions and/or corrective actions
are taken promptly to lower exposure or even to recover the overdue debts. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk for the remaining trade receivables, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited with several banks.
However, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the majority of the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies and with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

Management aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents or have available funding through
an adequate amount of available financing, including proceeds from loans from fellow subsidiaries and
bank borrowings to meet its liabilities when they fall due.

The Group has a number of alternative plans to mitigate the potential impacts on anticipated cash flows
should there be significant adverse changes in economic environment. These include adjusting
development timetable to adapt the market environment and implementing cost control measures. The
Group will pursue such options based on its assessment of relevant future costs and benefits.

Less than Between
1year 1and5years Overb5years Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
At 31 December 2017
Borrowings including accrued
interests 1,615,858 3,920,286 603,134 6,139,278
Finance leases 20,490 89,087 - 109,577
Trade and other payables 609,523 — — 609,523
Total 2,245,871 4,009,373 603,134 6,858,378
At 31 December 2016
(Restated)
Borrowings including accrued
interests 543,403 857,466 — 1,400,869
Loans from fellow subsidiaries
including imputed interests = 407,955 = 407,955
Trade and other payables 424,762 — — 424,762
Total 968,165 1,265,421 — 2,233,586
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(b)

(c)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as the sum of borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) and loan from fellow subsidiaries divided by total assets.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i)

Borrowings 5,259,400 1,238,660
Finance leases 95,875 =
Loan from fellow subsidiaries - 362,293
5,355,275 1,600,953

Total assets 7,656,327 2,822,436
Gearing ratio 70% 57%

The increase in the gearing ratio as at 31 December 2017 was primarily due to the increase in total
borrowings.

Fair value estimation

The different levels of the financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method, have been defined
as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The nominal value less impairment provisions of trade and other receivables approximate their fair values due
to their short maturities. The fair values of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.
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Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that may have
a significant effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(@)

(b)

(c)

Provision for properties under development (including land use rights) and
completed properties held for sale

Properties represent health and living project. The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties under
development (including land use rights) and completed properties held for sale according to their recoverable
amounts based on the realisability of these properties, taking into account estimated costs to completion
based on past experience and committed contracts and estimated net sales value based on prevailing
market conditions. Provision is made when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be realised. The assessment requires the use of judgement and estimates.

PRC corporate income taxes and deferred taxation

The Company’s subsidiaries that operate in the PRC are subject to income tax in the PRC. Management
judgement is required in determining the provision for income tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

PRC land appreciation taxes

The Group is also subject to land appreciation taxes (“LAT”) in the PRC. However, the implementation and
settlement of LAT varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC and accordingly, management
judgement is required in determining the amount of the land appreciation taxes. The Group recognised these
land appreciation taxes based on management’s best estimates according to the interpretation of the tax
rules. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts that were initially recorded and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and tax provisions in the periods in which such taxes have
been finalised with local tax authorities.
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The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”) of the Group has been identified as the executive directors of the
Company who are responsible for reviewing the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess the performance and
allocate resources. Management has determined the operating segments based on these reports. The Group is
organised into two segments:

Health Management: “Internet+” community health management, international hospitals, elderly care and
rehabilitation, medical cosmetology and anti-ageing in the PRC.

Media: Magazine publishing, distribution of magazines, digital business and provision of
magazine content in Hong Kong.

Management has identified the reportable segments based on the Group’s business model and assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on profit before tax. Unallocated corporate expenses, finance
income and costs and income tax expense are not included in segment results.

(a) Revenue by type

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable from customers during the year. An analysis of
the Group’s revenue by type for the year is as follows:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))
Health Management Segment:

Sales of health and living projects 1,313,376 158,026
Income from medical cosmetology and health management 15,098 55,505
1,328,474 213,531

Media Segment: (Discontinued operation)
Advertising income 74,712 142,054
Circulation income 24,797 40,244
Digital business income 85,269 56,080
Provision of magazine content 317 779
185,095 239,157
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Segment Information (continued)

(b) Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on the location where the sales occurred and
information about its non-current assets (excluding financial instruments and deferred tax assets) by
geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

Revenue from external Non-current assets
2017 2016 2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated) (Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i)) (Note 2(a)(i))
Continuing operations

— PRC 1,328,474 213,531 934,217 715,933

Discontinued operation
— Hong Kong 180,359 234,903 - 15,204
— PRC 4,736 4,254 - =
185,095 239,157 - 15,204

(c) Segment revenue and results

The segment information provided to the CODM for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 is as

follows:
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation Total
Health
Year ended 31 December 2017 Management  Unallocated Sub-total Media
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Segment revenue and revenue
from external customers 1,328,474 - 1,328,474 185,095 1,513,569
Segment results 658,871 - 658,871 14,105 672,976
Corporate expenses - (18,610) (18,610) - (18,610)
Finance income 16,408 4,201 20,609 11 20,620
Finance cost (3,517) (2,619) (6,136) - (6,136)
Profit/(loss) before income tax 671,762 (17,028) 654,734 14,116 668,850
Income tax expense (349,777) - (349,777) (1,702) (351,479)
Loss on disposal - - - (15,956) (15,956)
Profit/(loss) for the year 321,985 (17,028) 304,957 (3,542) 301,415
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5 Segment Information (continued)

(c) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation Total
Health
Year ended 31 December 2017 Management  Unallocated Sub-total Media
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Other Segment items:
Additions to property,
plant and equipment 478,692 - 478,692 2,026 480,718
Depreciation (14,685) - (14,685) (4,255) (18,940)
Amortisation (7,458) - (7,458) - (7,458)
Interest income 16,408 4,201 20,609 11 20,620
Interest expense (3,517) (2,619) (6,136) - (6,136)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation Total
Health
Year ended 31 December 2016 Management Unallocated Sub-total Media
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
Segment revenue and revenue
from external customers 213,531 — 213,531 239,157 452,688
Segment results 71,217 — 71,217 4,005 75,222
Corporate income — 284 284 — 284
Finance income 1,053 22,335 23,388 16 23,404
Finance cost (1,647) - (1,647) (3,040) (4,687)
Profit before income tax 70,623 22,619 93,242 981 94,223
Income tax expense (43,722) — (43,722) (313) (44,035)
Profit for the year 26,901 22,619 49,520 668 50,188
Other segment items:
Additions to property,
plant and equipment 197,463 — 197,463 597 198,060
Additions to land use rights 230,050 — 230,050 — 230,050
Depreciation (9,055) - (9,055) (8,238) (17,293)
Amortisation (5,150) — (5,150) — (5,150)
Interest income 1,053 22,335 23,388 16 23,404
Interest expense (1,647) — (1,647) (3,040) (4,687)
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5 Segment Information (continued)

(c) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The segment assets as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation Total
Health
Management  Unallocated Sub-total Media

RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

As at 31 December 2017
Segment assets 7,560,816 - 7,560,816 - 7,560,816
Corporate assets - 95,511 95,511 - 95,511
Total assets 7,560,816 95,511 7,656,327 - 7,656,327

As at 31 December 2016

(Restated)

Segment assets 2,216,603 - 2,216,603 128,776 2,340,379
Corporate assets - 482,057 482,057 - 482,057
Total assets 2,216,603 482,057 2,698,660 128,776 2,822,436
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Land Use Rights

(@) Movements of property, plant and equipment

Furniture,
Machinery fixtures and
Leasehold and office  Construction
improvements equipment equipment in progress Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i)) (Note 2(a)(i)) (Note 2(a)(i)) (Note 2(a)(i)) (Note 2(a)(i))
As at 1 January 2016
Cost 16,682 59,830 72,460 — 148,972
Accumulated depreciation (6,730) (13,627) (54,505) — (74,862)
Net book amount 9,952 46,203 17,955 — 74,110
Year ended
31 December 2016
Opening net book amount 9,952 46,203 17,955 — 74,110
Currency translation differences 561 (835) 891 617
Disposal of a subsidiary (159) (15) (384) — (558)
Additions 8 391 5,083 192,984 198,466
Disposals - (145) (599 — (744)
Depreciation (1,647) (8,316) (7,330) - (17,293)
Closing net book amount 8,715 37,283 15,616 192,984 254,598
As at 31 December 2016
Cost 17,475 58,467 76,369 192,984 345,295
Accumulated depreciation (8,760) (21,184) (60,753) — (90,697)
Net book amount 8,715 37,283 15,616 192,984 254,598
Year ended
31 December 2017
Opening net book amount 8,715 37,283 15,616 192,984 254,598
Currency translation differences (329) (32) (201) - (562)
Additions 1,016 5,125 8,567 466,010 480,718
Disposals (3,471) (23) (10) - (3,504)
Depreciation (1,124) (11,785) (6,031) - (18,940)
Disposal of discontinued
operation (4,643) (385) (3,257) - (8,285)
Closing net book amount 164 30,183 14,684 658,994 704,025
As at 31 December 2017
Cost 219 51,018 21,406 658,994 731,637
Accumulated depreciation (55) (20,835) (6,722) - (27,612)
Net book amount 164 30,183 14,684 658,994 704,025
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Land Use Rights (Continued)

(@) Movements of property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation charge of the Group was included in the following categories in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))

Continuing operations
Cost of sales 11,088 5,001
Selling and marketing costs 362 338
Administrative expenses 3,235 3,716
14,685 9,055
Discontinued operation (Note 11(a)) 4,255 8,238
Total depreciation 18,940 17,293

As at 31 December 2017, the Group pledged construction in progress with a net book value of approximately
RMB345,293,000 to secure the borrowings of RMB400,000,000.

(b) Movements of land use rights

Land use rights are related to properties outside Hong Kong, held on leases of over 50 years: (2016: 50

years)
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))
At 1 January 226,593 —
Addition — 230,051
Amortisation (4,670) (8,458)
At 31 December 221,923 226,593

Land use rights comprise cost of acquiring rights to use certain lands located in the PRC.
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6 Property, Plant and Equipment and Land Use Rights (Continued)

(c) Leased assets

Construction in progress includes the following amounts where the Group is a lessee under a finance lease (refer
to Note 17(b) for further details):

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000

Leased equipment
Cost 100,878 —
Accumulated depreciation - =

Net book amount 100,878 —
7 Goodwill

RMB’000

At 1 January 2016 (Restated) 584
Exchange difference 38

At 31 December 2016 (Restated) 622
Disposal of discontinued operation (591)
Exchange difference (81)

At 31 December 2017 =

The goodwill is allocated to the cash generating unit (“CGU”) of the magazine operated by Weekend Weekly
Publishing Limited (“Weekend Weekly”). As at 31 December 2016, an impairment test was performed by
comparing the attributable carrying amount of the business with the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations.
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Goodwill (Continued)

These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering five-year period. Cash flow beyond five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
stated below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business in which the
CGU operates.

2016
Discount rate 8%
Constant growth rate 1%

Management of the Group determines that there was no impairment of CGU containing goodwill at the end of the
reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the goodwill was disposed of upon the completion of the Disposal.

Prepayments, Trade and Other Receivables

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i)
Trade receivables 213,845 108,241
Less: allowance for doubtful debts - (614)
213,845 107,627
Prepayments 42,935 254,361
Deposits 214,187 8,807
Other receivables from:
— third parties 29,755 9,078
— related companies (Note 33(a)(ii)) 1,064 59,279
501,786 439,152
Less: non-current portion:
— prepayments for land use rights - (200,157)
— prepayments for property, plant and equipment (5,108) (43,501)
(5,108) (243,658)
Current portion 496,678 195,494
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Prepayments, Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

The Group normally grants credit terms of 30 days to 180 days to the Health Management Segment’s customers
with reference to their payment records and business relationship. For the Media Segment’s customers, settlement
of the sales from circulation income from magazines shall be made by the distributor within 10 days after the
verification of the quantity of magazines sold. Credit limit and outstanding balance from advertising income will be
reviewed by the management once a month.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice date at the reporting date, which
approximated the respective revenue recognition date:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))

Age
0-90 days 199,422 90,432
91-180 days 301 14,171
Over 180 days 14,122 3,638
213,845 108,241

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB10,095,000 (2016: RMB27,483,000), which are past due at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided allowance as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the Group
believes that the amounts are considered recoverable. For the remaining trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired, the Group believes that the amounts are considered recoverable with reference to their historical
payment records and business relationship. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i)

1 to 90 days 6,601 23,537
91-180 days 3,202 3,305
Over 180 days 292 641
10,095 27,483
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8 Prepayments, Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i)

Balance at beginning of year 614 258
Amounts written off as uncollectible - (137)
Charged to profit or loss - 462
Currency translation differences - 31
Disposal of discontinued operation (614) —
Balance at end of year - 614

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance
of nil (2016: RMB614,000). Since the management considered the prolonged outstanding balances from individual
customers were in doubt, full impairment has been made on these balances. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of
the trade receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The directors believe that

there is no further allowance required in excess of the current amount of allowance for doubtful debts.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, trade and other receivables are denominated in the following

currencies:
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))
RMB 501,256 357,072
HK$ 530 82,081
501,786 439,153
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As at 1 January 2016

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment

Net book amount

Year ended
31 December 2016
Opening net book amount at
1 January 2016
Additions
Amortisation

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2016

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment

Net book amount

Year ended
31 December 2017
Opening net book amount at
1 January 2017
Additions
Amortisation

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2017
Cost

Accumulated amortisation and

impairment

Net book amount

Publishing
library
RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))
29,156

(29,156)

29,156

(29,156)

Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited

Copyrights in
photographs
and articles
RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))

5,564

(5,564)

5,564

(5,564)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Software
RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))

2,187
5,089
(1,683)

5,593

7,299

(1,706)

5,593

5,593
283
(2,779)

3,097

7,582

(4,485)

3,097

Trademarks
RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))

86

82

86

(13)

73

86

(22)

64

Total
RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))
37,016

(34,747)

2,269

2,269
5,089
(1,692)

5,666

42,105

(36,439)

5,666

5,666
283
(2,788)

3,161

7,668

(4,507)

3,161
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(a) Properties under development

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i)

Properties under development comprise:
— Construction costs and capitalised expenditures 420,815 62,377
— Interests capitalised 87,553 13,370
— Land use rights 3,021,309 587,316
3,529,677 663,063

The properties under development include costs of acquiring rights to use certain lands, which are located in
the PRC for property development over fixed periods. Land use rights are held on leases of 40-70 years (2016:
40 years).

The capitalisation rate of borrowing rate for the year ended 31 December 2017 is 7.54% (2016: 6.0%).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group pledged properties under development with a net book value of
approximately RMB3,255,501,000 to secure the borrowings of RMB2,900,000,000.

(b) Completed properties held for sale

All completed properties held for sale are located in the PRC.

On 9 November 2017, the Company completed the disposal of its entire equity interest in New Media Group
Limited and the entire shareholder’s loan amounted to approximately HK$56,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB47,2883,000) due and payable by New Media Group Limited to Right Bliss Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, at a cash consideration of HK$63,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB53,602,000). New
Media Group Limited and its subsidiaries were mainly engaged in the magazine publishing, distribution of
magazines, digital business and provision of magazine content business. The Media Segment Business
represented a separate major business segment and the Disposal Group was presented as a discontinued
operation. Upon completion of the Disposal, the Group ceased to have any equity interest in New Media Group
Limited.

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

Profit after tax from discontinued operation (Note (a)) 12,414 668
Loss on disposal (Note (d)) (15,956) =
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operation (3,542) 668
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11 Discontinued Operation (continued)

(@) Analysis of the results of the discontinued operation is set out below:

The analysis of the profit or loss from the Media Segment Business presented as a discontinued operation in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” is as follow:

For the period from Year ended
1 January 2017 to 31 December
9 November 2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue 185,095 239,157
Other income and other gains, net (2,211) 21,955
Expenses
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (4,255) (8,238)
— Employee benefit expenses (44,337) (66,017)
— Operating lease rentals for rented premises and machines (8,752) (13,470)
— Cost of sales (95,340) (154,907)
— Other expenses (16,095) (14,475)
Operating profit from discontinued operation 14,105 4,005
Finance income/(costs), net 11 (8,024)
Profit before income tax from discontinued operation 14,116 981
Income tax expense (1,702) (8313)
Profit after tax from discontinued operation 12,414 668
Profit after tax from discontinued operation attributable to:
— Owners of the Company 11,174 601
— Non-controlling interest 1,240 67

(b) Net cash generated from/(used in) discontinued operation

For the period from Year ended

1 January 2017 to 31 December

9 November 2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 34,870 (17,284)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,951) (50)
Net cash generated from financing activities - 10,998
Effects of foreign exchange rates (1,973) 1,165
Net cash inflow/(outflow) for the period/year 30,946 (6,171)
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11 Discontinued Operation (continued)

(c) Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise from
discontinued operations:

For the period from Year ended

1 January 2017 to 31 December

9 November 2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

Net book amount 3,504 381
Loss from disposal of property, plant and equipment (3,440) 149
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 64 530

(d) Analysis of loss on disposal is as follows:

9 November

2017
RMB’000

Total consideration satisfied by:
Cash consideration 53,602

Less: Net assets disposed of:

Property, plant and equipment (8,285)
Trade receivables (52,463)
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments (15,446)
Cash and cash equivalents (56,722)
Trade payables 6,800
Amounts due to related companies 73,659
Others 27,710
(24,747)
Net assets attributable to non-controlling interests 2,472
Share of net assets disposed of (22,275)
Less: Shareholder’s loan due from New Media Group Limited (47,283)
Loss on disposal (15,596)
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11 Discontinued Operation (continued)

(e) Analysis of net cash outflow arising from the date of disposal is as follow:

9 November

2017

RMB’000

Cash consideration 53,602
Cash and cash equivalents disposed (56,722)
(3,120)

12 Cash and Bank Balances
(@) Cash and cash equivalents

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i))

Cash at bank and on hand 1,960,047 736,694
Short-term bank deposits 341,636 296,891

Cash and cash equivalents 2,301,683 1,033,585

Denominated in:

HK$ 1,186 26,490

RMB 2,299,785 1,006,328

Other currencies 712 767

Cash and cash equivalents 2,301,683 1,033,585

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of such foreign
currencies denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject to relevant rules and regulation
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating daily bank deposit rates. Cash and cash equivalents carry interest at
market rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.5% (2016: 0.01% to 0.5%).

100 Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 Cash and Bank Balances (Continued)

(b) Restricted deposits

As at 31 December 2017, restricted deposits of RMB217,193,000 (2016: RMB67,452,000) are held at banks
as security for guarantee deposits for construction of projects .

(c) Banking facilities

During the year, uncommitted banking facility of RMB1,500,000,000 (2016: RMB500,000,000) was granted
to the Group, of which RMB500,000,000 (2016: RMB500,000,000) was secured by deposits of the Company
provided that the drawing shall not exceed 98% of the deposits.

As at 31 December 2017, the total uncommitted banking facility was utilised to the extent of
RMB833,200,000 and the Group has available un-utilised banking facility of RMB666,800,000.

13 Share Capital

Number of shares Amount
RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 8,640,000,000 250,936

14 Share Option Schemes

No option was granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption and up to 31
December 2017.

Annual Report 2017 101



102

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the differences between the aggregate amount of share capital
and share premium of the relevant subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of a group reorganisation scheme (the “Group Reorganisation”).

Capital contribution reserve

The amount represent deemed capital contribution and deregistration of a subsidiary in 2006 and 2008,
respectively.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the deemed contribution arising from discounting of the non-current interest-free
loans from fellow subsidiaries.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of group entities with fluctuation currency other than RMB. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in Note 2(g)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations concerning foreign investment enterprise established in the
PRC and the articles of association of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group, those subsidiaries are required
to transfer an amount of their profit after taxation to the statutory reserve fund, until the accumulated total of
fund reaches 50% of their registered capital. Statutory reserve is non-distributable and the transfers of these
funds are determined by the board of directors of the relevant PRC subsidiaries in accordance with the
relevant rules and regulations in the PRC.
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16 Trade and Other Payables

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))
Trade and other payables:
Trade payables 155,560 351,331
Other payables to:
— third parties 348,779 176,119
— related companies (Note 33(a)(ii)) 136,210 1,161
484,989 177,280
Total trade and other payables 640,549 528,611
Receipt in advance from customers:
Receipt in advance from:
— sale of health and living projects 505,450 119,861
— other customers 2,092 5,980
Total receipt in advance 507,542 125,841

The Group normally receives credit terms of 60 days to 90 days from its suppliers. The following is an aging
analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at the reporting date:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))

Age
0-90 days 147,846 351,179
91-180 days 3,229 97
Over 180 days 4,485 55
155,560 351,331
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16 Trade and Other Payables (continued)

The Group’s trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i)

RMB 506,179 478,205
HK$ 4 50,406
Us$ 134,366 —
640,549 528,611

The Group’s receipt in advance from Health Management Segment’s customers are denominated in RMB.

17 Borrowings

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(2)(i))

Bank borrowings 5,259,400 1,238,660

Finance leases 95,875 —

Total borrowings 5,355,275 1,238,660
(a) Bank Borrowings

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i))

Borrowings 5,259,400 1,238,660

Less: non-current borrowings — secured (3,720,000) (758,200)

Current borrowings — secured 1,539,400 480,460
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(a) Bank Borrowings (Continued)

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i))

Within 1 year 1,539,400 480,460
Between 1 and 2 years 2,400,000 758,200
Between 2 and 5 years 920,000 =
Over 5 years 400,000 —
5,259,400 1,238,660

As at 31 December 2017, borrowings of approximately RMB5,259,400,000 are secured by share charge,
representing 100% of issued share capital of FALZBEEEEXFR AT, —EAMERIEEETIERR
Al and EMNEEBEREEBMR AR, the subsidiaries of the Group, and construction in progress and
properties under development, respectively. As at 31 December 2016, borrowings of approximately
RMB55,460,000 are secured by the share charge, representing 90.01% of the issued share capital of New
Media Group Limited, a subsidiary of the Group and RMB850,000,000 are secured by the share charge,
100% of issued share capital of =218 & B E&Fri% & EIE AR A 7], a subsidiary of the Group and properties
under development, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the interest rate of borrowings of RMB4,926,200,000 (2016:
RMB55,460,000) was fixed to 8.68% (2016: 5%) per annum. The remaining borrowings are interest bearing
loans at floating rate. Interest expense on borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2017 is
RMB191,433,000 (2016: RMB23,493,000).

The movements in borrowings as below:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i))

At 1 January 1,238,660 112,036
Proceeds from borrowings 4,576,200 1,184,172
Repayments of borrowings (555,460) (49,972)
Release of borrowings due to disposal of a subsidiary - (19,714)
Currency translation differences - 12,138
At 31 December 5,259,400 1,238,660

Annual Report 2017 105



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17 Borrowings (Continued)

(a) Bank Borrowings (Continued)

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings were denominated in the following currencies:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i)

HK$ — 55,460
RMB 5,529,400 1,183,200
5,529,400 1,238,660

The carrying amounts of the current borrowings approximate their fair values due to its short maturities. The
carrying amounts and fair values of the non-current borrowings are as follows:

Carrying amount Fair value
2017 2016 2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated) (Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i) (Note 2(a)(i))
Long-term bank loans 3,720,000 758,200 3,226,331 751,436
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17 Borrowings (Continued)

(b) Finance leases

The Group leases various construction in progress with a carrying amount of RMB100,878,000 (2016: nil)
under finance leases expiring with three years. Under the terms of the leases, the Group has the option to
acquire the leased assets for 50% of their agreed fair value on expiry of the leases. This option lapses in the
event the Group fails to maintain its credit rating at the level prevailing at inception of the lease.

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i)

Commitments in relation to finance leases are payable as follows:
Within one year 20,490 —
Later than one year but not later than five years 89,087 —
Minimum lease payments 109,577 —
Future finance charges (13,702) —
Total lease liabilities 95,875 —

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:
Within one year 18,710 =
Later than one year but not later than five years 77,165 —
95,875 —
18 Deferred Income Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follow:
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))
Deferred tax assets 6,577 3,744
Deferred tax liabilities - (126)
Deferred tax assets, net 6,577 3,618
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The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and movements thereon during the year:

Accelerated

tax Disposal of

depreciation Tax losses a subsidiary Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

As at 1 January 2016 (Restated) (1,411) 2,998 312 1,899
Credited to profit or loss for the year

(Note 24) 728 802 — 1,530

Currency translation differences 198 (79) 70 189

As at 31 December 2016 (Restated) (485) 3,721 382 3,618
Credited to profit or loss for the year

(Note 24) — 2,856 — 2,856

Disposal of discontinued operation 485 — (382) 103

As at 31 December 2017 — 6,577 - 6,577

At 31 December 2017, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately RMB81,394,000 (2016:
RMB70,055,000) available for offset against future profits. As at 31 December 2017, a deferred tax asset had been
recognised in respect of approximately RMB26,307,000 (2016: RMB17,235,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining RMB55,087,000 (2016: RMB52,821,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2017 are losses of
approximately RMB55,087,000 (2016: RMB15,004,000) that will expire within 5 years from the year of originating.
Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. There were no other significant temporary differences arising
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.
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19 Operating Profit

An analysis of major expenses as stated in cost of sales, selling and marketing costs and administrative expenses

is as follows:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))

Continuing operations
Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ emoluments) (Note 20) 107,670 83,997
Auditor’s remuneration 2,405 2,121
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14,685 9,055
Net exchange (gain)/loss (4,674) 478
Cost of inventories 442,667 2,735
Operating lease rentals for rented premises and machineries 2,196 2,363
Amortisation of land use rights 4,670 3,458
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,692 2,788

20 Employee Benefit Expenses — Including Directors’ Emoluments

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))

Continuing operations
Wages and salaries 89,118 75,543
Pension cost — defined contribution plans 18,552 8,454
107,670 83,997
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21 Benefits and Interests of Directors (Disclosures Required by Section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap.
622G) and HK Listing Rules)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of directors and the Chief Executive for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out

below:
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as
a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
Employer’s
Estimated Contribution
money value to aretirement
of other benefit
Fee Salary benefits scheme Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Tan Chaohui 175 — - 9 184
Peng Sheng (Notes a) 12 - — - 12
Han Xiaoran - - - - -
Chau Shing Yim, David 291 — - — 291
Guo Jianwen 300 - — - 300
Xie Wu 300 - - - 300
Total emoluments 1,078 - - 9 1,087

Note:

(@) Resigned on 17 March 2017

After the resignation of Mr. Peng Sheng on 17 March 2017, no Chief Executive Officer was appointed to fill
the vacancy of Chief Executive Officer. Thus, the remuneration of Chief Executive Officer is not disclosed.
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21 Benefits and Interests of Directors (Disclosures Required by Section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap.
622G) and HK Listing Rules) (continued)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of directors and the Chief Executive for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out

below:
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as
a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
Employer’s
Estimated contribution
money value  to a retirement
of other benefit
Fee Salary benefits scheme Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))  (Note 2(a)(i) (Note 2(a)(i)) (Note 2(a)()))  (Note 2(a)(i)
Tan Chaohui 181 — - 9 190
Peng Sheng (Note a and c) 124 — — — 124
Han Xiaoran 90 — — = 90
Tong Ming (Note b) 41 = = = 41
Chau Shing Yim, David 301 — — — 301
Guo Jianwen 300 — — — 300
Xie Wu 300 — — — 300
Total emoluments 1,337 — — 9 1,346

Notes:

() Appointed on 23 March 2016.
(o) Resigned on 23 March 2016.
(c) Resigned on 17 March 2017

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits

Except for the details disclosed in note 21(a), none of the directors of the Company received or will receive
any retirement benefits or termination benefits in respect of their services to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: nil).
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21 Benefits and Interests of Directors (Disclosures Required by Section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap.
622G) and HK Listing Rules) (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’
services

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has not paid any consideration to any third parties for
making available directors’ services to the Company (2016: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings entered into by the Group in favour of the directors of
the Company, or body corporate controlled by or entities connected with any of the directors of the Company
at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2016: nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2016: nil).

With effect from 23 March 2016, Mr. Peng Sheng was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
and Chief Executive Officer of the Group and resigned on 17 March 2017.

Five highest paid individuals

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the five highest paid individual include none of the directors (2016:
none), whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 21(a). The aggregate amounts of
emoluments of the other five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out
below:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i))

Salaries and other benefits 15,057 9,201
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21 Benefits and Interests of Directors (Disclosures Required by Section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap.
622G) and HK Listing Rules) (continued)

() Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

2017 2016
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i)
HK$1 — HK$1,000,000 — _
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 - 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 3 3
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 - —
HK$4,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 1 —
HK$5,000,001 — HK$6,000,000 1 —
22 Other (Costs)/Income, Net
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i)
Continuing operations
Other income
— Investment income 7,463 —
— Income recognised upon expiry of prepaid cards 2,507 35,514
— Others 1,405 —
11,375 35,514

Other costs
— Other tax expenses (12,242)
— Other (556)

(12,798)

Other (costs)/income, net (1,423)
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23 Finance Income/(Costs)

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))
Continuing operations
Finance income
— Bank interest income 20,609 23,388
Finance costs
— Interest expense on borrowings (191,433) (23,493)
— Interest expense on finance leases (3,140) —
(194,573) (23,493)
Interest capitalised 188,437 21,846
Finance costs (6,136) (1,647)
Finance income, net 14,473 21,741
24 Income Tax Expense
The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to profit or loss represents:
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))
Continuing operations
Current tax:
PRC corporate income tax 125,118 23,838
PRC land appreciate tax 227,515 18,354
Deferred taxation (2,856) 1,530
Income tax expense 349,777 43,722

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: 16.5%).

114 Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRC corporate income tax is calculated at 25% of the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: 25%). The income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in the PRC has been calculated
at the applicable tax rate of 25% on the estimated assessable profits for the year, based on the existing legislation,

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible including land use rights and all property

development expenditures.

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted

average tax rate applicable to profits of the Group as follows:

2017
RMB’000
Profit before income tax 654,734
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits
in the respective countries 165,131
PRC land appreciation tax deductible for PRC corporate
income tax expense (56,879)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 3,193
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses -
Temporary difference not recognised 424
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised 10,393
Income tax expense 122,262
PRC land appreciation tax 227,515
349,777
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2016
RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))

93,242

22,036

(4,589)
8,028
(2,559)
651
1,801

25,368
18,354

43,722
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25 Subsidiaries

Particulars of principal subsidiaries

Place of Issued and fully Percentage of
incorporation/ paid share capital/ attributable equity
Name operation paid-in capital interest held Principal activities

directly indirectly

Right Bliss Limited BVI USS$1 100% —  Investment holdings
Flaming Ace Limited BVI USS$1 100% —  Investment holdings
ERBREBARED) Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Investment holdings

Best Wealth Development Limited

BNTEFESERAR PRC (i RMB19,085,700 — 100%  Wholesales of home care and
Guangzhou Huiyu Trading Co. Ltd. healthcare products
BMmEl=REEERAF PRC (i) RMBS5,000,000,000 - 100%  Wholesales of cosmetic products
Guangzhou Kaishang Health Industry and provision of healthcare
Co. Ltd. services
REEARREARRAR AT PRC (i) RMB53,000,000 - 96.25%  Provision of healthcare services
Tianjin Evergrande Wonjin Beauty Hospital
Co. Ld.
EMEREREEREERAR PRG (ii) RMB15,000,000 = 100%  Investment holding

Guangzhou Evergrande Health Medical
Investment Co. Ltd.

BT EREEEF 2 EER AR PRC (i) RMB4,000,000 — 100%  Provision of healthcare services
Guangzhou Haizhu Henghui Clinic
Co. Ltd.

EEEEMZ AR AR PRC (i) RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of healthcare services

Jinan Henghui Clinic Co. Ltd.

BRgNEEFZHERAF PRC (i) RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of healthcare services
Jinan Qasis Henghui Clinic Co. Ltd.

AATEBRRERERAR PRG (ii) RMB1,000,000 = 100%  Provision of hospital
Nanchang Henghui Hospital Management management, software and
Co. Ltd. advertisement design service
REREEEMDBERAR PRC (i) RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of healthcare services

Shijiazhuang Henghui Clinic Co. Ltd.

REmERREREERAA PRG (i) RMB1,000,000 = 100%  Provision of healthcare services
Luoyang Henghui Health Service Co. Ltd.
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Particulars of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Name

REMBEFT AR AR

Chengdu Henghui Clinic Co. Ltd.

ROTEEPMZHER AR

Changsha Henghui Clinic Co. Ltd.

REBERFEHAREERAR

Place of
incorporation/
operation

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

PRC (i)

Wuhan Henghui Health Consulting Service

Co. Ltd.

BHEARRERERAR

PRC (i)

Hainan Evergrande International Medical

Co. Ltd.

R TEABERRERAFEAH

PRC ()

Shenzhen Evergrande Digital Technology

Co. Ltd.

BET TR BRSSPI HERAR

PRC (i)

Shenyang Yuhong Henghui Polyclinic

Co. Ltd.

REEXZREABRAR

AREERFEXER AR

S EARERREERERAT

ENESRERBER AR

BNE2ERREFARAF

PR (i

PR (i

PR (i

PR (i)

PR (i

Issued and fully

paid share capital/

paid-in capital

RMB1,000,000

RMB1,000,000

RMB1,000,000

RMB200,000,000

RMB5,000,000

RMB1,000,000

RMB5,000,000

RMB25,000,000

RMB100,000,000

RMB24,784,519

RMB10,000,000

Subsidiary incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2017

Notes:

(i)

(i)

These subsidiaries are wholly-owned foreign enterprises in the PRC.

These subsidiaries are sino-foreign co-operative joint venture in the PRC. Each of these entities is considered as a subsidiary of the Group
because the Group has majority voting rights on the board of directors and its strategic, operating, investing and financing activities are

controlled by the Group.

These subsidiaries are domestic enterprises in the PRC.

directly

Percentage of
attributable equity

interest held
indirectly

100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

Principal activities

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of information
technology consultancy
services

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Provision of healthcare services

Develop and sales of living units

Develop and sales of living units

Develop and sales of living units
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26 Dividends

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i))

Final dividend paid of Nil cents (2016: Nil cents) per ordinary share - —

27 Earnings/(Losses) Per Share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(losses) per share attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of

basic earnings/(losses) per share 8,640,000,000 | 8,640,000,000

Basic and diluted earnings/(losses) per share (RMB cents) (Note (a))
— from continuing operations 3.599 0.506
— from discontinued operation (0.037) 0.007
3.562 0.513

Note:

(@) As there was no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, diluted earnings/(losses) per share
equals basic earnings/(losses) per share.
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28 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(@) Cash used in operations

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i)
Profit before income tax 654,734 93,242
Adjustments for:
Finance income (20,609) (23,388)
Finance costs 6,136 1,647
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 6(a)) 14,685 9,055
Gain from disposal of property, plant and equipment - (13)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) 2,788 1,692
Amortisation of land use right (Note 6(b)) 4,670 3,458
Loss on disposal of discontinued operation (Note 11) 3,542 —
Exchange (gain)/loss (Note 19) (4,674) 478
Investment income (Note 22) (7,463) —
Operating profit before working capital changes 653,809 86,171
Changes in working capital:
Increase in inventories, properties under development
(including land use rights) and completed properties held for sale (2,520,361) (766,597)
Increase in trade and other receivables (383,285) (104,849)
Increase in trade and other payables and receipt in advance 549,715 599,945
Cash used in operations (1,700,122) (185,330)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale of property,
plant and equipment comprise from continuing operations:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i))

Net book amount - 363
Gain from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 13

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 376

Annual Report 2017 119



120

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(c) Reconciliations of liabilities arising from financing activities

28 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

Finance Finance
Loans from leases due leases Borrowings Borrowings
fellow within due after  due within due after
subsidiaries 1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Total debt as at 1 January
2017 (Restated) (362,293) — — (480,460) (758,200)  (1,600,953)
Purchase of fixed assets — (26,750) (77,165) — — (103,915
Interest paid — 2,379 — — — 2,379
Repayment of capital element of
finance leases — 4,900 — — — 4,900
Repayments of borrowings — — — 555,460 — 555,460
Proceeds from interest-bearing
borrowings — — —  (1,614,400) (2,961,800) (4,576,200)
Repayment of loans from fellow
subsidiaries 362,293 — — — — 362,293
Non-cash transaction — 761 — — — 761
Total debt as at 31 December
2017 — (18,710) (r7,165)  (1,539,400) (3,720,000) (5,355,275)

29 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the period but not yet incurred is as follows:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i)

Land use rights - 533,300
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29 Commitments (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments in relation of related premises and machineries
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i))

Within one year 633 18,124
In the second to fifth year inclusive - 15,375
633 33,499

30 Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has no material contingent liabilities (2016: nil).

31 Loans from Fellow Subsidiaries
Loans from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on 30 December 2020. The carrying
value of the loans from fellow subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 was stated at discounted present value with an

imputed interest rate of 6.18%. The loans were denominated in RMB.

The loans were fully repaid during the year ended 31 December 2017.

32 Financial Guarantee

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))
Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities for certain purchasers
of the Group’s property units 140,410 —

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of the Group’s property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments. Such guarantees terminate upon the earlier of
(i) issuance of the real estate ownership certificate which will generally be available within an average period of two
to three years upon the completion of guarantee registration; or (i) the satisfaction of mortgaged loan by the
purchasers of properties.
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32 Financial Guarantee (continued)

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks and the Group is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the related
properties. The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the mortgages. The directors consider
that the likelihood of default in payments by purchasers is minimal and the financial guarantees measured at fair
value is immaterial.

33 Related Party Transactions

(a) Related party transactions

The Group is controlled by China Evergrande Group, which owns 74.99% of the Company’s shares. The
remaining 25.01% of the shares are widely held. The ultimate parent of the Group is Xin Xin (BVI) Limited,
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Dr. Hui Ka Yan.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, in addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following significant transactions with related parties,

which were carried out in the normal course of the Group’s business:

(i) Transactions with companies related to China Evergrande Group:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i))

Operating expenses 155 1,974

Advertising expenses 37 =

Miscellaneous charges and fees 1,234 15

(ii) Balances with companies related to China Evergrande Group:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i))

Receivables from fellow subsidiaries (Note 8) 1,064 59,279

Payables to fellow subsidiaries (Note 16) 1,844 1,161
Payables to an intermediate holding company

(Note 16) 134,366 —

Loans from fellow subsidiaries (Note 31) — 362,293
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33 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(a) Related party transactions (Continued)

(i) Balances with companies related to China Evergrande Group: (Continued)
The receivables arise mainly from cash advance to fellow subsidiaries for daily operation purpose. The
receivables are unsecured in nature, bear no interest and repayable on demand. No provisions are held
against receivables from fellow subsidiaries (2016: nil).

The payables arise mainly from purchase transactions and are due two months after the date of
purchase. The payables bear no interest (2016: nil).

Loans from fellow subsidiaries arise mainly from the loans to the Group. These loans are unsecured,
interest-free. The Group repaid the amount in full during the year ended 31 December 2017.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive) of the Company. The compensation paid
or payable to key management for employee services is shown below:

The emoluments of directors and other members of key management during the year were as follows:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Restated)

(Note 2(a)(i)

Short-term benefits 1,078 1,337
Contribution to a retirement benefit scheme 9 9
1,087 1,346
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34 Balance Sheet and Reserve Movement of the Company

Balance sheet of the Company

As at 31 December

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i))
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries - 6,897
- 6,897
Current assets
Other receivables 530 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries 273,946 175,978
Cash and cash equivalents 344,134 299,834
Restricted cash - 51,637
618,610 527,449
Total assets 618,610 534,346
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital 250,936 250,936
Reserves (Note a) 233,277 283,410
Total equity 484,213 534,346
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 31 —
Amount due to an intermediate holding company 134,366 —
Total liabilities 134,397 —
Total equity and liabilities 618,610 534,346

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2018 and was signed on
its behalf.

Tan Chaohui Han Xiaoran
Director Director
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(a) Reserve movement of the Company

Merger Exchange Retained
reserve reserve earnings Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(Note 2(a)(i)) (Note 2(a)(i)) (Note 2(a)(i) (Note 2(a)(i))
At 1 January 2016 68,050 (4,892) 195,932 259,090
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year — — 27,749 27,749
Other comprehensive loss
Currency translation difference — (8,429) — (3,429)
Total other comprehensive loss
for the year — (8,429) - (8,429)
Total comprehensive income/
(loss) — (8,429) 27,749 24,320
Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners
Final dividend paid for 2015 = = = —
At 31 December 2016 68,050 (8,321) 223,681 283,410
Comprehensive loss
LLoss for the year — — (21,967) (21,967)
Other comprehensive loss
Currency translation difference — (28,166) — (28,166)
Total other comprehensive loss
for the year — (28,166) - (28,166)
Total comprehensive loss = (28,160) (21,967) (60,133)
Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners
Final dividend paid for 2016 = = = =
At 31 December 2017 68,050 (86,487) 201,714 238,277

The merger reserve of the Company represented the difference between the consolidated net assets of the
subsidiaries at the date of the group reorganisation and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued.

At 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for distribution was RMB201,714,000 (2016:
RMB223,681,000) as calculated.
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